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TIIE COURT:' T h e  naming o f  t h o s e  e x c l u d e s  o t h e r s .  Is 

there a n o t h e r  p o i n t  t o  what you a r e  making t h e r e ?  

MR. FERGUSOIJ: I t h i n k  t h e r e  is. I want t o  move 

f u r t h e r  t o  quash  on  t h e  grounds  t h a t  t h e  c o n s p i r a c y  s t a t u t e  . 

i t s e l f  d o e s  n o t  irnpose t h e r e q u i r e m e n t  o f  i n t e n t  or o v e r t  ac t .  

I t  s i n p l y  seems t o  r e q u i r e  t h a t  p e r s o n s  a g r e e  t h a t  t h e y  are 

g o i n g  t o  d o  something,  so t h a t  i f  it i s  a v i o l a t i o n  o f  a  t r a f f i  

law t o  jaywalk and Mr. B a l l a n c e  s a y s  l e t ' s  go o u t  and jaywalk 

and I s a y  okay l e t ' s  do t h a t ,  wit!lout any i n t e n t i o n  of d o i n g  it 

/ 
and j u s t  s a y  o r  a g r e e  I w i l l  so t h a t  and w e  d o n ' t  d o  i t ,  

now under  t h i s  s t a t u t e  under  t h a t  i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  t h i s  s t a t u t e  

would s a y  t h a t  i s  a c o n s p i r a c y .  O r ,  i f  two p e o p l e  s i t  down 

and s a y  l e t ' s  go b u r n  a b u i l d i n g  and t h e y  s a y  y e s ,  that i s  

a11 that i s  r e q u i r e d  under  t h i s  s t a t u t e .  

TIIE COURT: I seen t o  r e c a l l  t h i s  i s  one o f  o n l y  a  

f c w  states which d o e s  n o t  r e q u i r e  an  o v e r t  a c t  subsequen t  t o  th 

c o n s p i r a c y .  I d o  n o t  know whether  t h i s  s t a t u t e  c i t e d  has been 

court tested a s  to constitutionality h e r e t o f o r e  or not. 

NR. FERGUSON: Your Ilonor, l e t  m e  j u s t  s t a t e  here 

that t h i s  a s p e c t  o f  t h e  mot ion  re la tes  t o  t h e  charge of con- 

s p i r a c y  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency p e r s o n n e l ,  a l s o  ulitkw G .  S .  

14-288.9,  and a l s o  common law c o n s p i r a c y .  The r e q u i r e m e n t s  as 

I u n d e r s t a n d  a r e  t h e  same and w e  submi t  t h a t  i s  n o t  a c o n s t i t u -  

t i o n a l  b a s i s  upon which t o  b r i n g  a c o n v i c t i o n  and t o  d e f i n e  

the s t a t u t e  G . S .  1 4 - 4 3 ,  which d e f i n e s  t h e  s u b s t a n t i v e  o f f e n s e ,  
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t h a t  is  t h e  

burn by u s e  o f  i n c e n d i a r y  devices l ~ e c a u s e  t h a t  s t a t u t e  a l s o  

checks  up t h e  incendiar::-devices of 14-50.1. I hope I h a v e n ' t  

confused  t h e  Cour t  a b o u t  it. 

TIiE COURT: No. I don' t t h i n k  so. 

!4R, MUIlOVAL: Your Honor, I would l i k e  t o  j o i n  i n  

the motion as to quash.  

THE COURT: T h a t  i s  d e a l i n g  w i t h  Ann Shepard? 

l1R. HUNOVAL: Yes, sir,  dealing w i t h  the specificatio I 
i n t e n t  i s  r e q u i r e d .  I t  i s  my u n d e r s t a n d i n g  t h a t  s p e c i f i c  i n t e n  ! 
i s  r e q u i r e d  under  o u r  s t a t u t e ,  and i f  it i s  n o t  r e q u i r e d  and I 
if you f ee l  as  though you do n o t  have  t o  c h a r g e  under  it o r  I 
will n o t  c h a r g e  under  s p e c i f i c  i n t e n t ,  t h e n  under t h o s e  cond i -  

tions I move t o  quash t h e  two c o n s p i r a c y  charges. But I t h i n k  I 
you have t o  c h a r g e  on it even under  o u r  law on s p e c i f i c  intent. 

. . I 
TIIE COUIZT: W e l l ,  t h i s  Cour t  feels  tha t  t h e r e  i s  

a lways  a  p resumpt ion  o f  c o n s t i t u t i o n a l i t y  i n  a8:ts passed by the 

General Assembly. The qvzstions raised here afford sone food I 
for t l laught .  T h i s  C o u r t  f e e l s  t h a t  t h e  c o n s t i t u l ; i o n a i  q u e s t i o n  I 
i:; one p r o p e r l y  s u b m i t t e d  to an appellate court, arlcl t he  ~ ~ o t i o n .  1 
are  o v e r r u l e d  a t  t h i s  t i m e ,  e x c e p t i o n  as t o  all of t h e  rulings. 

(EXCEPTION NO, 4-MT) 
i%11<. FERGUSON: Y e s ,  sir. 

MR. I-IUI.JOVAL: O r  e x c e p t i o n  as  t o  t h e  p a r t  as t o  

s p e c i f i c  i n t e n t  i n  i n d i c t m e n t s  a s  regards Shepard i f  you do n o t  I 
charge on s p e c i f i c  i n t e n t  at t h e  t i m e .  (EXCEPTION NO. 5-MT) I 
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were made o u t s i d e  of t h e  presence of t h e  ju ry .  

(THE COURT E P O R T E K  ADVISED 1*111. STROUD TIlAT TlIE 

MR. STROUD: ~ u d g e ,  I w o u l d  like t h e  record t o  s h o w  

if it w i l l  t h a t  all t h e   notions on behalf of t h e  defendants  

IILCORD REFLECTS PROCEEDINGS I I J  CHiv4BERS AND P R O C X E D I N G S  I N  

OPEN COURT. FURTIiER DISCUSSION OFF TIIE RECORD. THE TRIAL 

- 
5 3  

PXSUt.lES 111 OPEN COURT AT 4 : 07 P.M. , AS FOLLOSIS : ) 

FIR. SI'ROUD: I f  i t  please tile C o u r t ,  a t  t h i s  t i m e  t h e  

II state w o u l d  l i k e  t o  c a l l  t he  cases fo r  trial. 

TIIC COURT: V e r y  w e l l .  

MR. STROUD: If it please t h e  C o u r t ,  i n  c a l l i n g  these 

1.) I( cases I w i l l  c a l l  then by n a m e  and by charge, and there i s  a 

IR II N e w  l i a n o v e r  County case niun.I~er and a Pender C o u n t y  case number. 

l 4  I And I bel ieve,  if I'm not m i s t a k e n ,  your  Honor probably has in 

TlIE COURT : Proceed. I 
15 I 

I 

I MR. STROUD: I w i l l  just c a l l  t h e  Perlder County nun- 
1 

f r o n t  of y o u  a l i s t ,  a written l i s t .  

18 li Lor, your ilonor. I n  C a s e  No. 72-CR-1G55 ,  t h e  defendant  iion I 
1:) 11 F r a n k l i n  C i i a v i s  i s  charged with c o n s p i r i n g  to assault - pari lu?~ I 
20 11 K C .  T h a t  case number is  incorrect .  T h e  cases w e r e  p u t  in I 

11 disorder. In Case No. 7 2 - C R - 1 6 5 3  the de fendan t   enj jam in I 
22 11 Franklin Chavis i s  charged w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency I 

I/ p c r s o n n c l .  IIow does he plead? 

MR. PERGUSON: The defendant  e ~ ~ t e r s  a plea of not I 
2.; 11 ( j u i l t y  t o  that charge. 
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MR. STROUD: I n  Case 110. 72-CR-1654 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  

Benjamin ~ r a n k l i n  Chavis  i s  charged w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn  

prolperty w i t h  a n  i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  How d o e s  he p l e a d ?  

MR. FCRGUSOEJ: M r .  C h a t i s  e n t e r s  a p l e a  of n o t  g u i l t y ,  

MR. STHOUD: I n  Case No. 72-CR-1655 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  

c h a v i s  i s  charged  w i t h  b u r n i n g  p r o p e r t y  w i t h  a n  i n c e n d i a r y  

d e v i c e .  

MR. FERGUSON: Hc? e n t e r s  a plea of n o t  g u i l t y  t o  

that, your  Honor. 

MR. STROUD: The n e x t  d e f e n d a n t ,  your  IIonor, is  

~ a r v i n  P a t r i c k ,  who i s  a l s o  charged i n  t h r e e  cases. I n  C a s e  

110. 72-CR-1656 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  f4arvin P a t r i c k  i s  charged  w i t h  

c o n s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency p e r s o n n e l .  

THE COURT: Is t h a t  1656 or 57? 

XR. STROUD: I have 56,  your  Honor. 

T I I E  COURT: Very w e l l .  G o  ahead.  

I lR .  STROUD: IIotr does he plead? 

MI<. FEKGUSON: I!r. P a t r i c k  e n t e r s  a  p l e a  of n o t  

g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  o f f e n s e .  

MR. STROUD: I n  Case No. 72-CR-1657 the d c f e n 3 a n t  

Patrick i s  charged  w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn  p r o p e r t y  w i t h - a n  

i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  How d o e s  h e  p l e a d ?  

FlR. FERGtJSOi?: I t  w i l l  be a p l e a  of n o t  g u i l t y .  

I 
MR. STROUD: I n  Case 110. 72-CIi-1658 t h e  clefendant  

c I8 
2.; 1 1  I ' d t r i c k  i s  charged  w i t h  b u r n i n g  p r o p e r t y  w i t h  a n  i n c e n d i a r y  

-. ---- - - - I '  

, . 
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II MR. STROUD: The next d e f e n d a n t ,  your  IIonor, a l s o  

55 1 

a ?  

I 
0 - 

3 

II with three indictments a g a i n s t  hirn i s  Connie T y n d a l l .  In Case 

device. How does he plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: M r .  Patrick e n t e r s  a p l e a  of n o t  

guilty to that. 

s 11 LO. 72-CR-1659 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  Tyndnll i s  charged w i t h  conspir- I 

9 11 that charge. 9 I 

7 

8 

FIR. STROUJ: I n  Case No. 72-CR-1660 t h e  defendant 

ing to a s s a u l t  emergency p e r s o n n e l .  How d o e s  he plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: M r .  Tyndal l  pleads n o t  g u i l t y  t o  

11 11 Tyndol l  is cllarged with c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn  property with a n  

1 2  11 i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  How d o e s  he p l e a d ?  

MR. FERGUSON: I l r .  T y n d a l l  pleads n o t  g u i l t y  t o  that 

I4R. STROUD: In Case Xo. 72-CR-1G61 the defeniiant I 
Tyndall is charged w i t 1 1  b u r n i n g  p r o p e r t y  ;~ith an incendiary 

r lcvice.  Iiow docs he p l e a d ?  I 
FIR. FERGUSON: M r .  Tynda l l  pleads n o t  g u i l t y  to t h a t  

charge. I 
i4R. STROUD: The next d e f e n d a n t ,  your i ionor,  i s  a l s o  

charged in three indictments, and t h a t  i s  J c r r y  Jacobs. In 

Case No. 72-CR-1GG2 the d e f e n d a n t  Jacobs i s  ckarc~cd w i t h  con- 

s 1 3 i r i . n ~  t o  assault emergency p e r s o n n e l .  How does he plead? I 
I 

MR. PERGUSON: Mr. Jacobs pleads n o t  g u i l t y .  I 
MR. STROUD: I n  Case N o .  72-CR-1CG3 the d e f e n d a n t  I 
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7 11 device. How does he plead? I 
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lo I I  MR. STROUD: The next d e f e n d a n t ,  your  !ionor, i s  a l s o  I 

-- - --*. - - 
. -. 

jacobs i s  charged  w i t h ? - - : l r l p i r i n g  t o  burn  property w i t h  a n  

i n c e n d i a r y  device. How Zoes be plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: ' w .  Jacobs pleads not g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  

offense. 

MR. STROUD: I n  Case No. 72-CR-1GG4 the defendant 

Jacobs is charged w i t h  burning p r o p e r t y  w i t h  an i n c e n d i a r y  

8 

! 

MR. FERGUSON: $ l r .  Jacobs pleads not g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  

offense. 

I:{ 11 conspiring t o  a s s a u l t  emergency personnel. ilow does he plead? 

11 

2 

i4R. FCRGUSON: 3lr. Vereen p l e a d s  n o t  g u i l t y .  

c!larged in three indictments, and that is Willie E a r l  Vereen.  

I n  Case No. 72-CR-1665 the defendant Vereen is charged  w i t h  

MR. STROUD: I n  Case Xo. 72-CK-1666 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  I 
1t; 11 Vcrccn i s  charged  w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn p r o p e r t y  wit:, an I 

incendiary device. How does he plead? 
( I 

>lR. STROUD: I n  Case No. 72-CR-7667 - parc'lon Xe - I 

I rl 

1 : )  

MR. FERGUSON: Mr. Vereen pleads no t  guilty t o  that 

o f f e n s e .  

21 

2'1 I! charge. I 

16G7 the d e f e n d a n t  Vereen i s  charged  w i t h  b u r n i n g  a building 

22 

2:i 

14R. STROUD: N e x t  cones tile de fendan t  Janlcs i".lcKOy, 

w i t h  an i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  How does hc plead? 

MR. FERGUSOiq: M r .  V c r e e n  pleads no t  guilty t o  t h a t  
I 

MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT REPORTER 

WHITEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 28472 



1 

C 2 

3 

4 

i,lcKoy is charged with conspiring to burn property with an I 

5 

G 

your ilonor, who is also charged in three indictments. In Case 

NO. 7 2 - C R - 1 6 6 3  the Clef endant 1,icf~oy is charged with conspiring 

to assault emergency personnel. Iiow does he plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: M r .  McKoy pleads not guilty to that 

offense. 

MR. STROUD: In C a s e  No. 7 2 - C R - 1 6 6 9  the defendant 

MR. STROUD: And in Case No. 72-CR-1670 the defendant I 

57 

8 

9 

incendiary device. How does he plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: M r .  McKoy pleads not g u i l t y .  

12 11 device. H o w  does he plead? I 
11 McKoy is charged with burning a building with an incendiary 

Il MR. STROUD: Next comes the defendant Reginald Epps, I 

13 

11 

MR. FERGUSON: 14r. I.4cI<oy pleads not guilty to that 

offense. 

16 

I 17 

18 

I 9  

20 

2'1 

2'2 

2 l 

* J - j  -. 

your IIonor. IIe is also charged in three indictnents. In Case 

No. 72-CR-1671 the defendant Epps is charged with conspiring 

to assault ermrgency personnel. I-IO~J docs he plead? 

IIR. FERGUSON: Ilr. C p p s  pleads not guilty to that, 

your 11onor . 
MR. STROUD: I n  C a s e  No. 72-CR-1672 the defendant 

Li>pS is charged with conspiring to burn a building with an 

incendiary device. HOW does he plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: Mr. Epps pleads not guilty to that 

charge. 
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I/ cpps  i s  charged w i t h  burning a b u i l d i n g  w i t h  an  incend ia ry  

1 

11 device. Mow does  he plead? 

MR. STROUD: I n  Case No. 72-CR-1673  t h e  defendant  

7 11 i s  that  c o r r e c t ?  

4 

5 

G 

II hlR. FERGUSON: T h a t  i s  c o r r e c t ,  your Honor. 

MR. FERGUSON: Plot g u i l t y .  

MR. STROUD: Next comes t h e  defendant  J o e  Wright,  

your Honor. I bel ieve also known as  i i l l i a m  Dallas  Kr igh t ,  

II MR. STROUD: H e  i s  charged a l s o  i n  three ind ic tmen t s ,  

lo // y o u r  Honor. I n  72-CR-1677 t h e  defendant  Wright i s  charged w i t h  

l1 II consp i r ing  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency personne l .  Mow does he plead? 

l2 11 MR. FERGUSON: M r .  Wright pleads n o t  g u i l t y .  

I 3  11 xn. STROUD: I n  Case No. 72-CK-1678 t h e  defendant  

14 !<!right i s  charged w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn a b u i l d i n g  wi th  an  

IB  /I i ncend ia ry  dev ice .  Now does he p lead?  

Iti II FIR. FERGUSON: M r .  Wright p leads  n o t  g u i l t y .  Is 

(< 
li II -- 

Yes. Pleads n o t  g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  offense. 

II MR. STROUD: I n  Case NO. 72 -CK-1673  the defendant 

I!' I t i r i g h t  i s  charged w i t h  burning a b u i l d i n g  wi th  a n  i n c e n d i a r y  

t'o II dcvice. Now does he plead? 

2 1 NR. FERGUSOM: Nr. Wright p l eads  n o t  g u i l t y  t b  t h a t  

? P  of fense .  

: I1 MR. STROUD: Next comes thc defendant  Wayne I3oore, 

21 il y o u r  Honor. H e ,  t o o ,  i s  charged i n  t h r e e  b i l l s  of  inclict~ill 1 . t .  

t In Case N o .  72-CR-1674 t h e  defendant  Ploore i s  charged w i t 1 1  
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c o n s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency p e r s o n n e l .  Ilow d o e s  h e  p l e a d ?  

MR. FERGUSON: M r .  r loore pleads n o t  g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  

o f f e n s e .  

MR. STROUD; I n  Case No. 72-CR-1675 the d e f e n d a n t  

!ioorc i s  charged  w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn  a  b u i l d i n g  w i t h  a n  

i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  How does h e  plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: M r .  Moore p l e a d s  n o t  g u i l t y  t o  that 

o f f e n s e .  

MR. STROUD: And i n  Case No. 72-CR-1676 the d e f e n d a n t  

i-loore i s  charged  with b u r n i n g  a b u i l d i n g  w i t h  a n  i n c e n d i a r y  

d e v i c e .  IIow d o e s  he plead? 

MR. FERGUSON: I l r .  i.1oore p l e a d s  n o t  g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  

13 

C 1 .I 

l5 

16 

( 
l7 

18 

In 

20 

2: 

211 

')I 

b c p r  4) 

offense .  

NR. STROUD: Next comes t h e  d e f e n d a n t  George Kirby,  

your  Honor. He is  charged  i n  two b i l l s  of indictment. In 

Case N o .  72-CR- 1680 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  Kirby i s  charged w i t h  con- 

s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency persoinel.  How does he plead? 

MR. PCI<GUSON: Mr. Kirby pleads n o t  g u i i t y  t o  t h a t  

of f c n s e ,  your  Iionor. 

I lX.  STKOUD: And i n  Case :lo. 72-CR-1681 tile defendant 

Iiirby i s  charged with c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn  a b u i l d i n g  w i t h  a n  

i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  IIow d o e s  he plead? 

MR. FEKGUSON: M r .  Kirby pleads  n o t  g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  

o f f e n s e ,  your  ilonor. 

MR. STl<OUD: Ncxt comes the d e f e n d a n t  Ann Shepard, 
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3 11 the d e f e n d a n t  Shepard  i s  charged  w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  1 

60 1 

2 

8 11 shepard i s  charged  w i t h  c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn a building w i t h  a n  I 

your  ilonor,  r e p r e s e n t e d  by Mr. P l a t t h a i s  l lunoval.  She i s  

charged  i n  t w o  b i l l s  of i n d i c t m e n t .  In Case No. 72-CR-1682 

G 

7 

!I 11 i n c c n d i a r y  d e v i c e .  Iiow dbes she p l e a d ?  I 

c h a r g e .  

FIR. STROUD: And i n  Case No. 72-CR-1633 t h e  d e f e n d a n t  

i 10 

11 

IS 

I:( 

G 1 1  

31R. HUNOVAL: Shepard pleads n o t  g u i l t y  t o  t h a t  

4 

c!~arge a l s o ,  your  Honor. 

THE COURT: A l l  r i g h t .  Xadan C l e r k ,  c a l l  t w e l v e  i n  

tile box. 

14R. STROUD: Your IIonor, a t  t h i s  t ine  the s t a t e  would 

-- I _____---- - -_ --1 
---- :1- ----- 

15 1 
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17 
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! 

l i k e  t o  make a mot ion  b e f o r e  c a l l i n g  a j u r y  i n t o  t h e  box t h a t  

t h c s c  cases be c o n s o l i d a t e d  f o r  t h e  p u r p o s e s  of  trial. 

TIIE COURT: E i t h e r  of t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  c a r e  t o  be h e a r d  

Oil  it? 

FIR. FERGUSOlJ: I d o  not care t o  be heard on behalE of 

t11c d e f e n d a n t s  I r e p r e s e n t .  

MR. HUNOVAL: N o ,  sir. 

THE COURT: A l l  r i g h t .  Without  o b j e c t i o n ,  t h e  motion 

i f9: . c o n s o l i d a t i o n  i s  a l lowed .  
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3  ILL BE I N  PARCNTIIESES AS I T  IS THE REPORTER'S COLJCLUSIO~J fp.~:.~ I 

Jnncs ; . l ~ I n t y r e  

Thompson Jessie 

A c i e  C a r l  Rivenbark  

( 4 )  Ray Edens (WHITE). (5) L e t t i e  Graham (BLACK).  ( 6 )  C a r l  

~ ~ 1 1 ~  (WII ITE)  . (7) ~ i l l i e  Mae S i d b u r y  (WHITE). ( 8 )  S e n n i e  

klootcn ~ i s a n e  ( B U C  I<) . ( 9 )  a F r a n c e s  J e w e l  A l f o r d  (WHITE) . 
(10) Earlie James (BLACK). (11) V e r a  W. S h i n g l e t o n  (WHITE). 

( 1 2 )  James Car=< J o n e s  (WHITE) . 
T I E  COURT: NOW, l a d i e s  and gentlemen o f  t h e  members 

of the jury p a n e l  i n  t h e  box a s  w e l l  as those s t i l l  o u t s i d e ,  
I 

tlio day is far s p e n t ,  and it w i l l  be n e c e s s a r y  f o r  some con- 

aidcrabla t i m e  t o  be t a k e n  i n  s e l e c t i n g  t h e  j u r y ;  and upon 

rc(1ucnt of c o u n s e l  t h e  Cour t  h a s  a g r e e d  t h a t  h a v i n g  g o t t e n  t h i s  

f a r  thc s c l e c t i o l l  o f  t h e  j u r y  w i l l  n o t  b e g i n  u n t i l  tomorrow 

rlsrning.  I t  c o u l d  n o t  n e a r l y  be f i n i s h e d  t o d a y  i n  any event. 

i \ccordin!j ly,  w c  are  g o i n g  t o  recess v e r y  s h o r t l y  and b e g i n  t h e  

!iclt!ction of t h c  j u r y  tornorrow morning. I want t o  g i v e  you 

t.ilirno adr lon i t ions .  The purpose ,  of c o u r s e ,  i n  a s k i n g  you 

q"es t ionn  when t h a t  begins w i l l  be t o  select t w e l v e  p e o p l e  I 
W!LO arc i 1 1  a position to serve as f a i r  and i m p a r t i a l  jurors. 

'~! , . l t  r:cnnri pcoplc who have n o t  heard or r e a d  o r  l e a r n c d  a n y t h i n  

,t!,out tlrcric? C~SCZ; or t h e s e  peop le  who are h e r e  i n d i c t e d  which I 
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1 

2 

6 11 of a fair end impartial juror, I request that while the selec- 

I 
1 i 

5 

of the jury is 

would render you - would render it difficult for you to sit as 
a juror and render a fair and impartial verdict without being 

influenced by some other factor other than the evidence which 

comes from this witness stand. Accordingly, in order that you 

may as nearly as possible be able to fulfill those requirements 

progress 

62 

and until it is completed - 
8 /I tonight or tomorrow or until the final members of the jury is I 11 sclccted - that you abstai? frcrn attempting to educate yourself I 

about these cases oc learn anything about them; that you abstai 1 - 

guilt or innocence of the defendants whom you have seen arraign 

11 

12 

13 

. , 

II this afternoon; that you avoid talking with anyone or permittin 

from reading a newspaper account or television or radio news 

item concerning the case or any aspect of it; that you do not 

attempt to form or express any opinion whatsoever as to the 

11 e v e n t  you should be selected in that position. Do not talk I 

lc 

I ?  

(. IH 

anyonc to talk to you about the cases or anything concerning th 

cases. In other words, that you maintain a free and open mind 

in readiness to serve as a fair and impartial juror in the 

I 11 these trials that the progress is made in an orderly, just, I 

2'0 

'I 

, , 
2'2 

wit11 anyone. Do not permit anyone to talk to you about the 

cases. Please observe that rule scrupulously in order that you 

may do your part in doing your best to see that this week in 
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and proper way, without any suggestion of other factors being 

injected which have no part in the administration of jukice. 



Ail right. b l r .  Sheriff, take a recess until nine-thirty 

tomorrow morning. Now, after the Sheriff recesses, please 

remain in your places until the defendants, along with their 

counsel, have gone or are outside of the court roox. All right, 

JUNE 6, 1972: 

TIIE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, both the jurors I 
sitting in the box as well as those who have not yet been calle , 

at this time the solicitor for the state and following him the t 
attorneys for the defendants will be questioning you touching I 
upon your qualifications to serve as jurors in these particu- I 
lar cases. NOW,' the purpose of this examination is to deter- 

mine whether or not you or any of you by reason of your 

acquaintance or association or knowledge about matters pertain- 

ing to this case or relationships in general or some personal 
. 2 

experience would be such as might make it difficult if not 

impossible for you to serve as a fair and unprejudiced and un- 

biased juror, the entire objective being that of obtaining 

t w e l v e  people w h o  are in a position to and will hear the evi- 

dence in these cases and render a verdict finally based solely 

upon the evidence which comes-from the witness stand as applied 
.. - . 

to the law as it wiil be the Court's duty to instruct you with 
. . . . "' 

reference to. I want you to understand it is not in any way 

intended, this examination, to embarrass you or to inquire into 

Your personal affairs beyond the point necessary to ascertain I 
your suitability as a juror. NOW, each side, that is to say, I 
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of what is called peremptory challenges; that is to say, both 

the state and the defendants have a right to ask that a certain 

the state and the defendantsfunder our law have a certain nuder 

prospective juror be excused without assigning any cause for it. 

64 

Cause would be some situation or condition whereby you have 

indicated that in all probability you could not sit as a proper 

juror. For instance, if you said that by information that had 

come to you, you had already made up your mind as to the guilt 

or innocence of the defendants without having heard the evidenc E1 , 
obviously you could not serve properly here; and other informa- 

./ 
tion might be brought out by questioning you whereby it would 

be clear that in all probability you could not properly serve 

and so you would be excused. That would be for cause. But, 
of 

in addition to that, each side has a number, as I said,/per- 

cmptory challenges, that is to say, for reasons satisfactory to 

themselves up to a certain number without stating any cause. 

If they didn't like the color of the dress you are wearing or 

the color of your shirt or the w a y  you part your hair or for 

Some reason wholly satisfactory to him without giving any ex- 

planation you might be excused. If you are so excused, you 

should not take that to mean that your honesty or integrity is 

baing questioned; that will not be the case. It simply means 

that for some reason satisfactory to the respective parties I 
that you should not sit, and so, others will be called. NOW, I 
with those preliminary remarks to acquaint you with what is to 
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65 come, you will now hear questions from first the attorney for 

the state, the solicitor. Let me ask that your responses to 

4Ucstion~ be spoken and spoken loud enough so that the court 

reporter, this lady sitting here, can hear your response. It 

is necessary that she take down both the questions and the 

responses, and she cannot do it unless you speak clearly and 

audibly for her to hear you. So, do not nod your head or 

otherwise indicate some response to a question where she cannot 

hear you nod your head. So, speak up, speak plainly, and speak 

loudly enough so that not only the court reporter but the 

attorneys and the Court may hear you clearly. I would say one 

thing further: It is your duty to answer the questions 

addressed to you as honestly as you know how. It is not for 

the purpose of embarrassing you, as I have stated, but you owe 

that duty to the Court, to the state, and to the defendants. 

I hope there will be no disposition on the part of any of you 

to do other than answer questions honestly or to answer ques- 

t i o n s  with a view to having yourself excused if possible; that 

would be wrong on your part. It is your duty to be honest 

with the Court and with the lawyers, and if you should be 

s~lected, to be selected on the basis of your honest answers 

to the questions; and if you are excused, let that also be on 

the basis of your honest response to questions that are 

addressed to you. All right. The jury is with the state. 

l4R. FERGUSON: If your Honor please, may I approach 

-- 
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purposes the plaintiff in this action, and so, I will be 

the bench? 

(MR. FERGUSON CONFERS WITH THE COURT. THE DEFENDANTS 

TNCE TIIEIR SCATS AT DEFENSE TABLES. ) 

MR. STROUD: Ladies and gentlemen, as his Honor has 

already referred to, I am Jay Stroud. I am with the District 

Solicitor's Office in the Fifth Judicial District which is 

New Hanover and Pender Counties. It is my function in this 

trial to prosecute the cases on behalf of the State of North 

Caro1i:-a. The State of North Carolina is for all practical 

representing the State of North Carolina in these cases,in the I 

6 6  

prosecution aspect of these cases. Now, as you know, when you 

were present in the court room yesterday, we have on trial I 
here eleven defendants, all of whom are seated over here with I 
their attorneys. All eleven of these defendants are charged 

with at least two and most of then are charged with three 

felonies, The three felonies involved are conspiring to assault 

crncrgcncy personnel, police officers and firernen, with a 

deadly weapon; the second charge is conspiring to burn a 

building with an incendiary device, to-wit: a fire bomb or a 

gas bomb; and third, the actual burning of a building with an 

incendiary device, to-wit: a fire bomb or a gas bomb. Now, 

these as alleged in the bills of indictment, these offenses 

took place in February, of 1971, February a year ago, in 

MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
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II a Saturday. So, we are talking a two day period of tine in 

11 February, of 1971. The building involved was Mike's Grocery I 

67 

1 ;  

Store, located on Sixth Street, in Wilmington. It's a two- 

story -- As alleged in the bill of indictment, it's a two-story 
wooden frame building. So, these are b a s i c a l l y  the allegations 

to have occurred in the bill of indictment on the days of the 

5th and 6th of February, 1971, being Friday and Saturday. The 

actual burning of the building with the incendiary device is 

alleged to have occurred on the 6th of February, which was on 

11 as contained in the bills of indictment on which the defendants I 
11 arc being tried at this time. Now, all of the defendants, with1 

the exception of Miss Shepard seated here and Mr. Kirby who is 

the third gentleman here, all of the defendants with the 

exception of these two are charged with all three of the crimes 

I've referred to: conspiring to assault emergency personnel I 
with a deadly weapon, police officers and firemen; conspiring 

to burn a building with an incendiary device; and burning the 

building w i t h  an incendiary device. Mr. Kirby and ~ i s s  shepard I 
arc charged with two crimes: conspiring to assault emergency 

pcrsonncl with a deadly weapon, to-wit, firemen and police 

officers; and secondly, conspiring to burn the building with 

an incendiary device. They are not - these two defendants - 
arc not charged with burning the b u i l d i n c ~ .  So, we have eleven 

defendants, thirty-one charges in all. Now, at this time I'm 

going to question each of you or questio~~ you as a panel, as a 
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MR. STROUD: Next would be the defendant William 

Wright seated immediately behind me, from Wilmington. Do any 

group, and then I will later direct the individual questions 

to you or questions to you as individuals as to whether or not 

you know any of these defendants or recognize them or perhaps 

know any of the members of their family. So, I will ask with 

regard to each defendant. NOW, with regard to Miss Shepard, 

14rs. Shepard, the young lady sitting here at the table beside 

her attorney: Do any of you know Mrs. Shepard or have you 

ever seen her or do you feel that you might know any of her 

family? She is from Wilmington, North Carolina. If any of 

you do know her, I would appreciate your raising your hand. 

'(NO FtESPONSE FROM THE JURY. ) 

.MR. STROUD: All right. Let's continue at the table. 

Next would be, seated beside her would be Pic. Connie Tyndall, 

of Wilmington. Do any of you know him or do you feel like you 

might know any members of his family? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY. ) 

MR. STROUD: Next would be Mr. Benjamin Chavis seated 

at the t a b l e .  Do any of you know him personally or do you know 

any of the members of his family? If so, please raise your 

hand. 

I 

I 21 11 of YOU know Mr. ' ~ r i ~ h t  br do you feel like you would know any I 

68 
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II (NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.  ) I 
matter? Please raise your hand if you do. 

!I MR. STROUD: Next i s  the defendant Wayne Moore, the I 

69 

second one from t h i s  end. Do any.of you know Mr. Wayne Moore, 

from Wilmington? Do any of you recognize him, or do you feel 

11 like you know any of the members of his family? 
' I 

(NO RESPOEJSE FRO!.! THE JURY. ) 

MR. STROUD: The next would be the defendant George 

I I Kirby. He is the third gentleman fron this end. Do any of you 

/I know Mr. George Kirby, fron Wilmington, or co you feel like you 
know any of the members of his family, or have you ever seen 

him that you know of? If so, please raise your hand. 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: Next is the defendant Willie Earl 

Vcreen, the fourth gentleman in the row back there. Do any of 

you know him, or do you feel lika you might know any of the 

lncmhers of his family - he is fron Wilmincjton - or do you 
recognize him. 

(NO R1:SPONSE FROM THE JURY. ) 

MR. STROUD: D o  all of you have a clear v i e w  of the 

dcfendants? Is there anyone w h o  cannot see the defendants? 

(NO JUROR INDICATES IN TIIE NEGATIVE.) 

MR. STROUD; All right, Next would be the defendant 

Jerry Jacobs, the young inan with the glasses on, the fifth. 

I no any of you recognize Mr. Jacobs, or do you feel like you 

!I 
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Wilmington. 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

would know any of the members of his family? He is also from 

MR. STROUD: Next is the defendant James IlcKoy, from I 

70 

Wilmington, North Carolina. Do any of you feel  like -- Can you 
all see that far down in the rear there? Juror No. One, I 

believe you are Fir. Thompson; can you see all of them. 

#1 IdK. TIIOMPSON: I can see all but the two last ones 

on the end. 

MR. STROUD: Okay. Now, do any of you recognize ilr. 

XcKoy? He's the sixth gentleman from the end. Do you feel 

like you would know any of the members of his family. Me's 

also from Wilmington. I 
(NO RESPONSE F4011 THE JURY.  ) 

MR. STROUD: T h e  next is t h e  defendant Reginald Epps. 

Would you stand up, please, f a r .  Epps? (DEPENDANT EPPS COMPLIES . )  

90 any of you recogr-ize Nr. Epps or do you feel like you would 

know any members of his family? lie is also from Wilmington, 

1Jorth Carolina. Any of you? I 
(NO RESPOIJSE FROi.1 TIIE JURY.  ) I 

MR. STROUD: T h e  next i s  the defendant Patrick. If 

you would stand up, please? (DEFENDATIT PATRICK COI4PLIES.  ) 

I f  YOU would take your glasses off, please? (DEFENDANT PATRICK 

CO:4PLIES.) Do any of you recognize Mr. Patrick? IIe is from I 
PJ i lming ton ,  North Carolina. Or do any of you know him or do 

- -.- 
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you t h i n k  you might be aware of any of the members of  his 71 

family? M r .  l l a rv in  P a t r i c k .  

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE J U R Y .  ) 
Thank you. 

MR. STROUD: fiow,counsel involved i n  t h e  c a s e s  f o r  

t h e  defendants  c o n s i s t  f i r s t  of a l l  w i t h  M r .  M a t t  IIunoval, who 

is  s e a t e d  immediately t o  my l e f t .  M r .  Hunoval i s  r e p r e s e n t i n g  

1 Mrs. Shepard. M r .  Hunoval i s  an a t t o r n e y  from Wilmington, 

/ North Caro l ina .  Now, do any of you know M r .  Hunoval? I f  s o ,  

I/ please r a i s e  your hand. 

lo 11 (NO mSPONSE FRO1.I THE J U R Y  ) 

Can you see l4r. Ballance? . . 

11 

12 

# 1 2  MR. JONES: No, sir,  I c a n ' t .  

MR. STROUD: The nex t  a t t o r n e y  s e a t e d  beyond M r .  

Chavis i s  M r .  Frank Bal lance ,  from Warrenton, North Caro l ina .  

II MR. STROUD: ~ r .  Balance,  would you mind? (IvlR- 

? G  /I UILLAlICE' STANDS.) T h a t ' s  Mr. Bal lance.  Do any of you inow 

17 I I H I .  Bal lance ,  from Warrenton, North Caro l ina .  H e  i s  involved 
(- I I 18 in the defense of t h e  other ten defendants .  

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE J U R Y . )  

MR. STROUD: A l l  r i g h t .  The next i s  M r .  James Fergu- 

21 Ilson, from C h a r l o t t e ,  North Ca ro l ina ,  who i s  involved i n  the 
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24 

defense  of t h e  o t h e r  t e n  defendants ,  o t h e r  t han  M r s .  shepard.  

D o  any of you know any of t h e s e  a t t o r n e y s ?  I f  so, p l e a s e  r a i s e  

your hand. 



7 2  

I 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

MR. STROUD: A l l  r i g h t .  Again I w i l l  ask you, do any 

of you know any of t h e  defendants?  

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY .) 

MR. FERGUSON: Excuse m e .  I f  I might ,  your Honor, M r .  

rlarmon w i l l  be j o i n i n g  u s  f o r  t h e  t r i a l  t h i s  a f t e rnoon  o r  

7 

8 

9 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE J U R Y . )  

MR. STROUD: Nor?, appear ing  as p o s s i b l e  w i tnes ses  f o r  

tomorrow. 

MR. STROUD: There w i l l  be a t h i r d  a t t o r n e y  j o i n i n g  

i n  t h e  de fense  of t h e  t e n  de fendan t s ,  o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  defendant  

Shepard,  and t h a t  w i l l  be M r ;  John Harmon, from New Bern, North 

10 

11 

c a r o l i n a .  DO any of  you know M r .  Harmon? I f  s o ,  p l e a s e  raise 

your hand. 

the ju ry  might see I I 

G 1.1 

15 

1 

them. 

the defendants  i n  t h e s e  c a s e s  a r e  t h e  fo l lowing ,  whose names and 

a r e a s  of  r e s idence  I w i l l  c a l l  o u t  t o  you, and if any are pre-  

sent i n  t h e  c o u r t  room, 1 would l i k e  t o  have them s t a n d  so t h a t  

The f i r s t  p o s s i b l e  w i tnes s  f o r  t h e  

lR 

- 

MR. STROUD: Next would be M r .  Roderick Kirby,  of 

defendants would be Annie ~ c ~ a i n ,  from wilmington, North 

Caro l ina .  1s she  i n  t h e  c o u r t  room? D o  any of you know M r s .  

z0 

2 1 

23 11 Wi lrnington, North ~ a r o l i n a .  

McLain? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.)  

M r .  Kirby i n  t h e  c o u r t  room? Do 

24 / /  any of you know M r .  Roderick Kirby? I f  s o ,  p l e a s e  r a i s e  your I 
MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR C O U R T  REPORTER 

WHITEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA 28472 



Xf so, please raise your hand. 

73 

-- ,,,. ,,.J,,.., b------ 

C 2 

3 

4 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY. ) 

I 
I 

MR. STROUD: Next would be Mr. Hugh Jones, from 

Wilmington, North Carolina. Is Mr. Jones in the court room? 

DO any of you know Mr. Hugh Jones, from Wilmington, North 

r , e  . . . 
. - . .  

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY. ) 

I1 ton, North Carolina. Do any of you know Rev. and Mrs. Eugene 

7 

lo (1 Temple ton? I 

MR. STROUD: Reverend and Mrs. Eugene Templeton, 

presently of New Jersey as I understand it, formerly of Wilming- 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: Mr. John Green, from Wilmington, North 

II Mr. John Green, from Wilmington? If so, please raise your 
. . 

- * - .  
hand. a. . 

. . 
IG (NO RESPONSE FROM THE >RY. 

17 MR. STROUD: Mrs. Stephanie Green, of Wilmington, 

l8 North Carolina. DO any' of 'you knbw Mrs. Green, ~tephanie Green, 

l9 from Wilmington, North Cadina? . 

2'0 (NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

21 MR. STROUD: Mrs. Minnie Monroe, from Wilmington, 

t'S 
North Carolina. Is Mrs. Monroe in the court room? DO any of 

3 1  you know Mrs. Monroe, of Wilmington? 

24 (NO RESPONSE FROM TIIE JURY.) 

25 MR. STROUD: And Rev. Leon White, of Raleigh, North 

I MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS . 
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT REPORTER 

W H I T E V I L L E .  NORTH C A R O L I N A  26472 



74 

i 

1 

e 2 

3 

4 

5 

G 

7 

8 

I) 

10 

11 

12 

13 

11 

15 

1'; 

: 7 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 
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34 

25 

.-=====--, 

Carolina. Do any of you know Rev. White, from Raleigh? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: And E V .  Benjamin Wonce, N-o-n-c-e, from 

~ilmington, North Carolina. Is Mr. Wonce here? Do any of you 

know Mr. Benjamin Wonce, of Wilmington, North Carolina? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: All right. YOU are Mr. Z. L. Thompson, 

Juror No. 1, is that correct? 

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUL: YOU are a resident of Pender County. 

.W. Thompson? ' 

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: How long have you been a resident? 

MR. TIIOMPSON: All of my life. 

MR. STROUD: Mr. Thompson, what is your occupation, 

please ,  sir? 

MR. THOMPSON: I am a maintenance man for Eastern 

Carolina Housing Authority. 

MR. STROUD: Have you ever served on jury duty before, 

Mr. Thompson? 

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, sir. I 

MR. STROUD: Paen was the last time? 

MR. THOMPSON: About four year ago. 

MR. STROUD: Was that at a criminal session or a civil 

S C S S ~ O ~ ,  if you know? 

- 
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MR. STROUD: You know none of the attorneys or their 

7 5  
1 

G 2 

3 

4 

MR. STROUD: ..... clients, is that correct? 

MR. TIIOHI?SON: It was criminal court. 

MR. STROUD: M r .  Thompson, you know none of the defen- 

dants or their attorneys, if that correct? 

MR. TIIOMPSON: How is that? 

7 

MR. THOMPSON: That's right. 

....* 
MR. THOMPSON: NO, sir, I don't. 

MR. THOMPSON: That's right. I 

10 

11 

I MR. STROUD: Do you have any difficulty in your hear- 

MR. STROUD: You know none of the witnesses for the 

defendants that I called out, is that correct? 

1.1 I (  ing, Mr. Thompson? I 
15 11 MR. THOMPSON : Sometimes. 

lti I1 MR. STROUD: Have you had this problem with hearing 

II so far as iqhat has been said in the court roon? 
11 MR. TIIOMPSON: NO, sir, 

l9  II MR. STROUD: Do you feel like you will be able to 

11 hear the witnesses as they testify from the witness stand? I 
I' I/ MR. THOMPSON: I think so, yes, sir. 

"I I/ young in age? 

2) 

2: 

II MR. TIIOMPSON: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Would your verdict in these cases in any 

way be influenced by the fact that some of the defendants are 

M R S .  SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
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I 

I/ MR. THOMPSON: I d o n ' t  k n o w  anyth ing  about it, o n l y  

MR. STROUD: Now,  Mr. T h o m p s o n ,  

c 2 

II w h a t  I see t h e  headl ines  i n  t h e  papers, t h a t ' s  a l l .  

know per sona l ly  a n y t h i n g  about the  facts  i n  these cases as I 

MR. STROUD: Y o u  have read about t h e  cases? 

MR. TIIOMPSON: I have read about t h e  cases, yes, sir. 

II MR. STROUD: H a v e  you heard anyth ing  about t h e m  on 

3 I 

~ T . v .  or  radio? I 

h a v e  s tated t h e  a l lega t ions  t o  you i n  t h e  b i l l s  of i n d i c t m e n t ?  

MR. TIIOblPSON: W e l l ,  yes,  I 've  heard s o m e ,  yes ,  sir. 

l1 II MR. STROUD: H a v e  you discussed w i t h  anyone a t  great  I 
I/ l e n g t h  your f e e l i n g s  or t h e i r  f e e l i n g s  about t h e  cases? 

13 

"' II MR. STROUD: D o  you know of any factor  t h a t  w o u l d  pre- 

MR. THOMPSON: N o ,  sir. 

.# 
17 

(. IR 

I D  

MR. STROUD: D o  you hold any v i e w  t h a t  m i g h t  be pre ju-  

d i c i a l  t o  t h e  s ta te 's  case as t h e  case is presented? 

MR. TIIOMPSOEJ: N o ,  sir. 

MR. THOMPSON: No.  N o t  a t  t h i s  t i m e ,  N o ,  sir. 

11 

I 
l5  i 

2 1 

22 

MR. STROUD: I f  t h e  s ta te  should  prove t o  you be$ond 

MR. STROUD: H a v e  you f o r m e d  an opin ion  about  the 

cases? 

MR. TIIObPSON: N o ,  sir. 

I 
v e n t  you f r o m  s e r v i n g  as a f a i r  and i m p a r t i a l  j u r o r  i n  th3s  

case? 

:;, :i reasonable doubt t h a t  each of the defendants  w e r e  involved i n  
!I 

!I 
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were involved i n  the c r i m e  of burning a b u i l d i n g  with an  incen-  

diary d e v i c e ,  would you f i n d  them g u i l t y  as charged? 

NR. THOMPSON: Y e s ,  g u i l t y  as charged,  t h a t ' s  r i g h t .  

MR. STROUD: D o  you know o f  any f a c t o r  t h a t  might 

i n f l u e n c e  your decision i n  t h i s  case o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  ev idence  

that you w i l l  hear  as it comes from the w i t n e s s  s t a n d  and t h e  

arquments of  t he  a t t o r n e y s  involved and t h e  charge of h i s  Honor, 

t h e  Judge? 

MR. THOl4PSON: NO, sir. 

77 
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4 

5 

G 

MR. STROUD: Mr. McIntyre? 
.. . 

MR. MCINTYRE: Yes, sir. 

- - 

. .. 
.*  . -. . 

thc crimes of c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn a b u i l d i n g ,  and c o n s p i r i n g  t o  

a s s a u l t  emergency pe r sonne l ,  would you f i n d  them g u i l t y  a s  

charged? 

MR. THOMPSON: I t h i n k  so, y a  sir. 

MR. STROUD: And i f  t h e  s t a t e  proved t o  you t o  a l l  

of these de fendan t s ,  excep t  f o r  t h e  defendantsshepard  and I<irby,  

MR. STROUD: A r e  you a r e s i d e n t  of Pender County? 

MR. MCINTYRE: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: How long have you been a r e s i d e n t ?  

MR. MCINTYRE: All of my l i f e .  

MR.STROUD: What i s  your occupa t ion ,  p l e a s e ,  sir? 

r:j I l  MR. MCINTYRE: Ki ln  t e n d e r ,  a t  ~ i m m e  co rpo ra t ion .  

MR. STROUD: How o l d  are you, please, M r .  McIntyre? 

MR. MCINTYRE: Twenty-eight. 
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MR. MCINTYRE: N o ,  sir. 

MR. STROUD: YOU k n o w  none of t h e  defendants?  

78  
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5 

G 

7 

MR. MCINTYRE: N o ,  sir. I 

1 

0 2 

3 

4 

MR. STROUD: M r .  M c I n t y r e ,  would t h e  fac t  t h a t  t h e  - 
t h a t  t h e  defendants i n  these cases are young, w o u l d  t h a t  i n  any 

way af fec t  your decision? 

MR. STROUD: Have you ever seen any of t h e m  before? I 

MR. STROUD:  re you m a r r i e d ?  

MR. MCINTYRE: Y e s ,  sir. 

MR. STROUD: DO you have any chi ldren? 

MR. MCINTYRE: Two ch i ld ren .  

MR. MCINTYRE: N o t  t h a t  I k n o w  of .  

MR. STROUD: Y o u  k n o w  none of t h e  a t to rneys?  

MR. MCINTYRE: N o ,  sir. 

MR. STROUD: N o r  any of t h e  possible witnesses f o r  t h e  

d e f e n d a n t s  t h a t  I have ca l led  out? 

MR. MCINTYRE: NO, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you personally k n o w  anything about  t h e  

11 a l l e g a t i o n s  i n  these cases? 1 
MR. MCINTYRE: NO, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do  you hme any in te res t  ' in  t h e  

I I o u t c o m e  of t h e  cases? 

I MR. MCINTYRE: No. 

MR. STROUD: A r e  you a w a r e  of any factor t h a t  might 

in any way i n f l u e n c e  your decis ion i n  t h e  cases o ther  than  t h e  
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2 1) court? 

1 

MR. MCINTYm: No, sir. 

evidence, the aJXuements of counsel, and the charge of the e 
MR. STROUD: If the state proved to you beyond a 

5 

G 

reasonable doubt that all of the defendants participated in 

planning and conspiring to assault emergency personnel with a 

7 

8 

MR. STROUD: If the state proves to you beyond a I 

deadly weaponland a l l  of the defendants were involved and par- 

ticipated in planning and conspiring to burn a building with an 

9 

10 

12 11 reasonable doubt by its evidence that all of the defendants I 

incendiary device, would you find them guilty as charged? 

MR. MCINTYRE: Yes, sir. 

13 11 with the exception of Shepard and Kirby participated in the 
1-1 burning of a building with an incendiary device, would you find 

l5 /I them guilty as charged? 
lti 11 MR. MCINTYRE: Yes, sir. I 
17 MR. STROUD: Now, have you heard or read anything 

(.' 
lg about the participation of any o f  these defendants in the d i s -  

turbance in Wilrnington in February, of 1971? 

"0 MR. MCINTYRE: No more than what was on television. 

21 II MR. STROUD: Television. Have you had any personal 

" 11 conversation with anyone about the incident? I 
MR. MCINTYRE: NO, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Or about any of these defendants? 

MR. MCINTYRE: No, sir. 

M R S .  SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
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1 

5 \Iany way influence your decision in these cases? 

'-Y: - 

MR. STROUD: heard or read anything about any 

e 2 

3 

4 

MR. MCINTYRE: No, sir, 

MR. STROUD: Have you formed an opinion about the 

guilt or innocence of the defendants? 

MR. MCINTYRE: NO. sir. 

of the defendants? 

MR. MCINTYRE: ye& sir. 

MR. STROUD: What you have heard or read. would that i I 
MR. STROUD: DO you now have the view that as a result 

of what you have heard or read that might be in any way preju- 

dicial to the state's case? 

MR. MCINTYRE: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Thank you. Mr. Rivenbark, you are a 

resident of Pender County? 

MR. RIVENBARK: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Mow long have you been a resident here? 

MR. RIVENBARK: Thirty-one years. 

MR. STROUD: Pardon? 

MR. RIVENBARK: Thirty-one years. 

MR. STROUD: Thirty-one years. You are married and 

have a family, sir? 

MR. RIVENBARK: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: How many children? 

MR. RIVENBARK: One. 

MRS SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
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MR. RIVENBARK: That's correct. 

- 

I 

2 

3 

please, sir, I 
MR. STROUD: What is your occupation,/Mr. Rivenbark? I 

THE COURT: I believe you will have to speak a little 

louder. 

MR. STROUD: YOU are married and have one child? 

81 

G 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

MR. STROUD: Or their attorneys? 

. : MR. RIVENBARK: I don't know any of then. 

MR. RIVENBARK: Mechanic. 

MR. STROUD: I*. Rivenbark, would you in any way be 

influenced in rendering a decision in this case because of the 

age of the defendants, the fact that they are young d e f e n d a n t s ?  

MR. RIVENBARK: No, I would not. 

MR. STROUD: YOU know none of the defendants, is that 

12 

13 

MR. STROUD: Or the witnesses that might appear for 

correct? 

MR. RIVENBARK: That's correct. 

l7 I/ the defendants? I 3 8 

19 

of the attorneys and the charge of the Court? I 

MR. RIVENBARI:: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you have any p e r s o n a l  interest in the 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

- % I = - -  MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
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outcome of this c a s e ?  

MR. RIVENBARK : NO, I don' t . 
MR. STROUD: Are you aware of any factor that might 

influence your decision in this case other than the evidence 

tllat will be rendered from the witness stand and the arguments 



MR. STROUD: Do you know -- Do you have personal 
1 

:I 11 knowledge of any of the activities or incidents t h a t  occurred 

1 11 during February, 1971, in Wilrnington, North Carolina? 
* I 

MR. RIVENBARK: No, sir. 

I/ MR. RIVENBARK: No. I was working in Wilmington at 

82 

( 10 11 four blocks from Castle Hayne. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1111 , MR. STROUD: Where were you working at the time? I 

the time. 

MR. STROUD: Were you in the area where the incidents 

are alleged to have occurred? 

MR. RIVENSARY.: Z was working on Fifth Street, about 

MR. RIVENBARK: National Linen Service. 

MR. STROUD: As a result of what you have read or 

an opinion about the case as to the guilt or innocence of the 
. - 

G 14 

If; 11 defendants? I 

heard about the case, if anything, has this - have you formed 
. . 

. -  - 
MR. RIVENBARK: I have not formed an opinbn, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you have a view that might be preju- 

II dicial to the state's case? I 
MR. RIVENDARK: No, sir. I 

?:I 1, participated in the planning to assault emergency personnel 
21 

23 

with a deadly weapon and to burn a building with an incendiary I 

MR. STROUD: If the state proves to you beyond a 

reasonable doubt that each of the defendants were involved and 

G device, would you find them guilty as charged? 
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MR. STROUD: I f  t h e  state. . . , .  

THE COURT: Speak l o u d e r ,  p l e a s e .  What was your  

MR. RIVENBAM: Y e s ,  I would. 

response? 

MR. RIVENBARK: I said:  Yes, I would. 

MR. STROUD: I f  the s t a t e  shou ld  p rove  t o  you beyond 

83 

a r ea sonab l e  doubt  t h a t  a l l  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s , w i t h  t h e  e x c e p t i o n  

of Shepard and Kirby - t h e  de fendan t  Shepard and t h e  de fendan t  

Kirby,were involved and participated i n  t h e  burninq of  a build- 

i n g ,  Mike's Grocery,  w i t h  a n  i n c e n d i a r y  d e v i c e ,  would you f i n d  
.' 

them g u i l t y  as charged? 

MR. RIVENBARK: Y e s ,  I would. 

MR. STROUD: Thank you, sir. Now, l a d i e s  and gentlemf 

I a m  a d d r e s s i n g  t h i s  t o  a l l  of  t h e  members o f  t h e  p a n e l ,  i f  I 

may. I w i l l  l i s t  f o r  you a t  t h i s  time t h e  witnesses that w i l l  

probably  appear for  t h e  S t a t e  o f  North C a r o l i n a  i n  these cases 

and w i l l  ask you i f  you know them o r  - well, i f  you know them or 

know anything about them. ~ i r s t  of a l l  w i l l  be M r .  Mike P o u l a s ,  

who i s  the owner o r  was t h e  owner o f  Mike's Grocery Store locatc 

o n  S i x t h  S t r e e t ,  i n  Wilmington, Nor th  Ca ro l i na .  

(NO RESPONSE FROM TEIE J U R Y . )  

MR. FERGUSON: Excuse m e .  May we a s k  t h a t  t h e s e  

w i t n e s s e s  s t a n d  i f  any of them are p r e s e n t  i n  t h e  court room? 

1 1  
1 1  THE COURT: Y e s .  

2'5 

- -- ----_--- ---2 

MR. STROUD: None of  them are p r e s e n t ,  your  Honor. 

:'--__ 
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. - - II MR. STROUD: That is correct, your ilonor. Do any of 
- 
7 

1 

- - 1 

, ...; + -- 
THE COURT: None of t h e m  are present? 84 

- 

MR. STROUD: HOW abut W .  William Chips, who is a 

3 

4 

you know Mr. Poulas? 
& 

(NO RESPONSE FRO?; THE JURY. ) 

(NO RESPONSE FR0P.I THE JURY. ) 

MR. STROUD: Detective J a m e s  Williams, Jimmy Williams, 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Is  11 with the Wilmington Police Department? 

young officer with the Wilmington Police Department? Do any of 

you know him? Mr. Bill Chips? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM, TIIE JURY. ) 

MR. STROUD: Mr. Clarence Fredlaw, who is a detective 

with the Wilmington Police Department? Do any of you know him? 

MR. STROUD: Detective Hollifield, D. A. Hollifield, I 
le  ( 1  known as Dud, of the Wilmington Police Department? I 

I 17 

18 

I" 

20 

2 1 

Z'L' 

2:) 

21 I 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: Assistant Chief Glisson, of the l ~ i l m i n g -  

ton Fire Department? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: J .  D .  Rhodes, of the ~ilmington Fire 

Department? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE J U R Y .  ) 

0 2 5 

MR. STROUD: Jerome Mitchell, of Wilmington, ~orth 

Carolina? 

- - - _ _  , 
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(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: Mr. Paul Campbell, who is an agent with 

t h e  A.T.F., Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms, of Wilmington, North 

carolina? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY .) 

MR. STROUD: Mr. Allen Hawe, formerly a resident of 

Wilmington, North Carolina? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE J U R Y . )  

MR. STROUD: Mr. Murton Wyce, of Wilmington, North 

Carolina? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE J U R Y .  ) 

MR. STROUD: t lr .  Tony Williams; he is a young man, of 

Wilmington, North Carolina? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: And Father Jones, a priest, of ~lilmington, 

:!orth Carolina? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY.) 

MR. STROUD: And Sgt. Hobbs, of the k 7 i l m i n q t o n  police 

Department? 

(NO RESPONSE FROM THE JURY .) 

MR. STROUD: Now, do any of you know any of those 

witnesses whose names 1 have called? T h e s e  will be appearing 

as possible witnesses for the state. 

(NO RESPONSE FROM T1IE JURY. ) 

MR. STROUD: NOW, Mr. Edens, are you a resident of 

3. 
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please, sir? 

MR. EDENS: All of my life. 

MR. STROUD: And how old are you, please? 

MR. EDENS: Twenty-three. 

THE COURT: What was your answer? 

86 
1 

2 

3 

MR. EDENS: Twenty-three. 

Pcndcr County? 

MR. EDENS: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: HOW long have you been a resident, 

THE COURT: Twenty-one? 

MR. EDENS: Twenty-three. 

THE COURT: Speak a little louder, please. 

MR. STROUD: Are you married, Mr. Edens? 

MR. EDENS: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: What is your occupation, please, sir? 

MR. .' EDENS : Plumber ' s helper. 

MR. STROUD: Would the fact that the defendants in 

these cases are young in age, w o u l d  that in any way affect 

11 your decision in this-case? I MR. EDENS: NOI sir. 

MR. STROUD: YOU know none of them, is that cdrrect? I MR. EDENS: That's correct. I 
MR. STROUD: Or their attorneys? I 

5 4 MR. EDENS: NO, sir. I 
MR. STROUD: Or the witnesses for the defendants that 1 

- 
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MR. EDENS: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: DO you have any personal interest in the 

4 11 outcome of this case? 

MR. EDENS: NO, Sir. 

5 

G 

7 

MR. STROUD: 

MR. EDENS: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: A r e  you aware of any factor that might 

prevent you from reaching a fair and impartial verdict in this 

than the evidence, the arqu- 1 

MR. STROUD: If the state proved to you beyond a 

11 

12 

reasonable doubt, 14r. Edens, that each of the defendants were 

involved in and participated in planning and conspiring to burn 

ments of counsel, and the charge of the Court? 
/ 

MR. EDENS:  No, sir. 

!.like's Grocery, in Wilmington, North Carolina, and that all of 

the defendants were involved in the planning and conspiring to 

assault emergency personnel in the vicinity of Mike's Grocery, 

in Wilmington, North Carolina, would you find them guilty as I 11 charged? . . I 
Yes, 'sir. MR. EDEIJS : 

MR. STROUD: If the state proved to you beyond a 

I I reasonable doubt that each of the defendants, with the exccptio 1 
11 of the defendants Kirby and Shepard, that each of them were 
I involved in and participated in the burning of the store, Mike's 
1 

MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT REPORTER 

WHITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 28472 



88 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

1 .I 

If, 

I (i 

< 17 

, IH 

I!, 

. b -0 

21 

?" 

2:i 

2 I 

0 
.BC ".B 

__-- -----, --- 

G r o c e r y ,  i n  ~ i l m i n g t o n ,  N o r t h  C a r o l i n a ,  w o u l d  you f i n d  t h e m  

guilty as  charged? 

MR. EDENS: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: A l l  r i g h t .  M r s .  G r a h a m ,  i s  that correct? 

MRS. GRAIIAM: Yes. 

MR. STROUD: Are you a resident of Pender C o u n t y ,  Mrs. 

G r a h a m ?  

MRS. GRAHN-I: Yes, I am. 

MR. STROUD: HOW long have you been a r e s i d e n t ,  M r s .  

G r a h a m ?  

MRS. GRAHAM: A l l  my life. 

MR. STROUD: A r e  you m a r r i e d ?  

MRS. GRAHAii: Y e s ,  I a m .  

MR. STROUD: A n d  do you have any c h i l d r e n  l i v i n g  a t  

h o m e  w i t h  you? 

MRS. GRAIIAM: Yes. 

MR. STROUD: A r e  you e m p l o y e d  ou t s ide  of t h e  home, 

:4rs. Graham? 

MRS. GRAIIAM: Yes, I am. 

MR. STROUD: What do you do? 

MRS. GRAIIAM: A cafeteria helper. 

MR. STROUD: Is your husband e m p l o y e d ?  

MRS. GRAIIAM: No.  H e  i s  disabled.  

MR. STROUD; Pardon? 

MRS. GRAIIAM: H e  i s  disabled. 
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MRS. GRAHAM: Yes. 

MR. STROUD: Do you know any of the defendants? 

MR. STROUD: Or their lawyers? 

89 
1 

MRS. GRAIIN4: No. 

MR. STROUD: Or the witnesses for the defendants that 

MR. STROUD: Disabled? 

I1 m i g h t  appear? 

MRS. GRAHAM: No. 

I MR. STROUD: The fact that the defendants are young 

I1 II in age, would that in any way affect your decision? 
MRS. GRAFWI: No. 

MR. STROUD: Do you have any personal knowledge about 

the i n c i d e n t s  that occurred in Wilmington in February, of 1971, 

MR. STROUD: 

la  

16 

Do you -- You have watched it on tele- 

with regard to Mike's Grocery Store? 

MRS. GRAHAM: No. Only what I seen on television. 

I1 vision and you have heard about it, is that correct? 

occurred in Wilmington? 

MRS. GRAHAM: No. 

MR. STROUD: Have you heard anyone make a comment or 

I!) 

20 

2 1 

li I/ l l l ~ o  you made a comment to anyone about the incidents? 

MRS. GEIAHAM: That's right. 

. MR. STROUD: Have you had any lengthy discussion or 

any discission with other people about the incidents that 

- 
M R S .  SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT REPORTER 

W H I T E V I L L E .  N O R T H  C A R O L I N A  28472 



11 you have heard and read, do you have any view that might in any 

90 1 

2 

3 

4 

G 

7 

!' 11 way be prejudicial to the state's case in the cases? I 

MRS. GRAIIAM: No. 

MR. STROUD: Now, what you read in the newpaper and 

what you have heard on television, would that - has that caused 
you to form an opinion about the case with regard to the guilt 

or innocence of the defendants? 

MRS. G R A I W :  No. 

MR. STROUD: Do you have any view as a result of what 

MR. STROUD: Do you have a personal interest of any 

kind in the outcome of this case? 

: 
I 10 I I MRS. GRAf1AT.I: No 

MRS. GRAIIAM: No. 

MR. STROUD: Would you in any way be embarrassed or 

reluctant to serve on this jury? 

I 

MRS. GRAHAM: Beg pardon? 

MR. STROUD: Would you in any way be embarrassed or 

I1 reluctant to sexve on this jury? 
I1 MRS. GRAHAM: No. 

11 * 
MR. STROUD: D o  you know or are you aware of any 

factor that might inPluence your decision in this case if you 

ware to serve on the jury..... 

MRS. GRAllAM : No. 

11 MR. STROUD: ..... other than the evidence that you 

/I will hear, the arguments of counsel involved, and the charge 
MRS. SYLVIA P. EDWARDS 
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o f  t h e  Court? 

MRS. GRAIIAM: (INDICATES NEGATIVE. ) 

MR. STROUD: If t h e  s ta te  proved t o  you beyond a 

reasonable  doubt ,  M r s .  Graham, t h a t  each  of  t h e s e  de fendan t s  

were involved i n  and p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  p lanning  and consp i r ing  

t o  burn Mike's Grocery S t o r e  wi th  a n  incend ia ry  or incend ia ry  

dev ices ,  and t h a t  a l l  of  t h e  de fendan t s  were involved and par-  

t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  p lanning  and c o n s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency 

pcrsonnc l ,  policemen and f i remen who came i n  t h e  are of  Mike's 

Grocery S t o r e ,  i n  Wilmington, North C a r o l i n a ,  would you f i n d  

them g u i l t y  as  charged? 

MRS. GRAHAM: Yes. 

MR. STROUD: I f  t h e  s t a t e  should prove t o  you by i t s  

evidence and beyond a r ea sonab le  doubt  t h a t  a l l  of  t h e  defendants  

with t h e  excep t ion  o f  t h e  defendants  Shepard and Kirby w e r e  

i n v o l v e d  and p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  burn ing  of  t h e  b u i l d i n g  a t  

Mikc ts  Grocery S t o r e ,  i n  Vlilmington, North Ca ro l ina ,  would you 

f i n d  them guilty as charged? 

MRS. GRAHAM: Yes. 

MR. STROUD: Thank you. M r .  W e l l s ,  you are a r e s i d e n t  

of Pcnder County, is  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

MR. WELLS: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: How long have you been a r e s i d e n t ,  please ,  

s i r ?  

MR. WELLS: Twenty-five yea r s .  
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MR. STROUD: A r e  you mar r i ed ,  sir? 

MR. WELLS: Y e s ,  sir. 

MR. STROUD: What i s  your occupa t ion ,  p l ea se?  

MR. WELLS : Ret i r ed .  

MR. STROUD: What was your  occupa t ion  b e f o r e  you 

retired, please, s i r ?  

MR. WELLS: oh, farming. 

MR. STROUD: D o  you know -- You do n o t  know any of  t h e  

defendants  o r  t h e i r  a t t o r n e y s ,  is t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

MR. WELLS: That i s  c o r r e c t .  

MR. STROUD: O r  t h e  w i tnes ses  t h a t  were c a l l e d  o u t  

t h a t  might appear f o r  t h e  defendants?  

MR. WELLS: N o ,  I d o n ' t .  

MR. STROUD: Do you know anyth ing  -- D o  you have any 

persona l  knowledge w i t h  r ega rd  t o  t h e  i n c i d e n t s  t h a t  occur red  

i n  Wiln~inqton, i n  February,  19711 

MR. WELLS: No pe r sona l  knowledge. J u s t  what I have 

,<!ad i n  t h e  papers .  

MR. STROUD: As a r e s u l t  of what you have r ead  and  

I 

Ihcard,  have you formed an  op in ion  about  t h e  g u i l t  o r  innocence 

" 
2: 

of t h e  defendants?  

MR. WELLS: I a m  a f r a i d  I have. 

."{ I - I! MR. STROUD: Challenge f o r  cause ,  your Honor. 

?I ' TlIC COURT: T h e  Court  heard the response,  "I a m  a f r a i d  

C . I " -  ,. 1 have".  A l l  r i g h t .  You may be excused. Proceed. 
:I  

I ___,------ -- .. - - . ,__--- - - - -  - - .. - ---- 
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CLERK: 4 6 )  William Henry Moore (BLACK). 

MH. STROUD: M r .  Moore, you have heard all of the 
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comments that I have stated thus far, have you not? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you know any of the defendants that 

are on trial here? 

MR. MOORE: No, sir. 
THE COURT: Please speak up. 
MR. STROUD: Do you know any of their attorneys? 

MR. MOORE: N o ,  sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you know any of the witnesses that 

night appear for the defendants whose names I called out? 

MR.  MOO^: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you know any of the witnesses that 

might appear for the state whose names I called out? 

MR. MOORE: No, sir. 

f4R. STROUD: You are a resident of Pender County, is 

that correct, Mr. Eloore? 

b1R. f-100RE: Yes, sir. 

MR. STIIOUD: How long have you been a resident? 

MR. MOORE: All my life. 

FIR. STROUD: What is your occupation, please, sir? 

MR. MOORE: I am retired. 

MR. STROUD: What was your occupation before you were 

,! retired? 
I 

, a 2.1 I!  MR. MOORE: Farming. 

11 
- -  - --1==:=z -.- cc----- 
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MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you have any children living with you 

1 

4 11 in the home? I 
II MR. MOORE: No. 

MR. STROUD: Are you married, sir? 

II MR. STROUD: You are aware of the charges that the 

94 

' II MR. STROUD: Youpheard me review that, is that correct 

7 

8 

I 0  II MR. MOORE: .Yes, sir. 

defendants are being tried for, is that correct? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. 

I 1  li MR. STROUD: Would you decision in this case if you 

IL' II were to serve on the jury, would your decision in any way be 
I/ influenced by the age of the defendants? 

MR. MOORE: No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Do you have any personal knowledge of 
. . .  

MR. STROUD: By what you've seen, you mean on tele- I 

1'; 

1' 

." II MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. I 

the incidents that took place in Wilmington during February, of 

19711 

r2 I/ MR. STROUD: YOU have read about the matter? 

"I I1 MR. MOORE: A little, yes ,  sir. I 

1 H I 
I 

"1 ii 
MR. STROUD: And you have heard it on television and 

I I 

EIR. MOORE: Only what I heard and seed. 

2; / j  radio? 

I I 
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MR. STROUD: Do you recall what you heard? I'm not 

MR. STROUD: As a result of what you heard, have you 

1 
3 

1 

1 formed an opinion about the guilt or innocence of the defendants? 

asking you to repeat it. 

MR. MOORE: No, sir, I haven't. 

MR. MOORE: No, sir; no, sir. I 
MR. STROUD: DO you know of any factor whatsoever thaj 

I/ might in any way infl~ence~your decision in this case..... 
MR. MOORE: No, sir. I 

MR. MOORE: No, sir, I don't. I 

11 

MR. STROUD: Do you have any personal interest in the 

MR. STROUD: ..... other than the evidence and the 
arguments of counsel and the charge of the Court? 

I' 11 outcome of this case? 
MR. MOORE: No, sir. I 

MR. MOORE: No, sir, I don't. 

I 7 

( l8 

MR. STROUD: Are you aware of any factor that would 

prevent you from returning a fair verdict in the case? 

11 and participated in the planning and conspiring to burn Mike's I 

20 

2 1 

?:I I/ Grocery store, in Wilrnington, North Carolina, with an inccndiar 4 

MR. STROUD: If the state should prove to you beyond 
, Mr. Moore, 

a reasonable doubtithat each of the defendants were involved 

I 
I " 11 or incendiary devices, and that each of the defendants were 
I I 
I i C involved and participated in planning and conspiring to assault I 
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4 II MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. I 
MR. STROUD: 

96 
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the state should prove to you beyond 

emergency personnel, police officers and firemen in the vicinity 

~ike's Grocery Store in Wilmington, North Carolina, would you 

find them guilty as charged? 

G 

7 

8 

9 

I 0  

I I 

12 

13 

G 1 -I 

15 

1'; 

(. 
17 

1 H 

1'1 

z't 1 

2'1 

L"-' 

2:t 

a reasonable doubt that each of the defendants, with the excep- 

tion of the defendants Kirby and Shepard, were iavolved and 

participated in the actual burning of Mike's Grocery Store with 

an incendiary or incendiary devices, would you find them guilty 

as they are charged? 

MR. MOORE: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Mrs. Sidbury, you are a resident of 

Pcnder County, is that correct? 

MRS. SIDBURY: Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: How long have you been a resident, please, 

ma'am? 

MRS. SIDBURY: All of my life. 

MR. STROUD: And are you married, ma'am? 

MRS. SIDBURY: Yes. 
I 

MR. STROUD: What does your husband do, please? 

MRS. SIDBURY: Ile works for Rochelle Furniture Company, 

near Fair Bluff. 

I 1  MR. STROUD: Are you employed outside the home at 
, 

21 I'illl, ma'am? 

.D' 
-.# 

! 1 
t I1 MRS. SIDBURY: No, sir. 

--- -- , - - - . - -  --- -;: - 
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IIR. STROUD: You know none of t h e  de fendan t s  or t h e i r  

a t t o r n e y s ?  

MRS. SIDBURY: I do  n o t  know any t h a t  you have named 

t h i s  morning, w i t n e s s e s ,  a t t o r n e y s ,  o r  defendants .  

MR. STROUD: Do you have any p e r s o n a l  knowledge about  

t h e  i n c i d e n t s  t h a t  occur red  i n  Wilrnington, North C a r o l i n a ,  i n  

February,  1971? 

MRS. SIDBURY: The on ly  t h i n g ,  a boy who marr ied  my 

granddaughter was w i t h  t h e  f i re  depar tment  i n  l i l n i n g t o n  a t  t h e  

t i m e ,  and I have heard  some t h i n g s  from him; however, I do n o t  

know of  anyone by name. You know, I've heard of t h e  i n c i d e n t ,  

but not  of anyone w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  it. 

MR. STROUD: So, you are say ing  you have no p e r s o n a l  

knowledge, b u t  you have heard c e r t a i n  t h i n g s ?  

I MRS. SIDBURY: No pe r sona l  knowledge, no, s i r ,  but I 

14; / I  avc heard h i m  t a l k  r i g h t  much, t o  him and h i s  w i f e .  

MR. STROUD: Not repeating what you recall, b u t  do 

I *  ' 1  you recall  what he sa id  or they said about the incident? 1 
, . 

MRS. SIDBURY: Not any s p e c i f i c  i n s t a n c e .  

2o I' 
i ! MR. STROUD: Do you recall  any s t a t emen t  with regard 

11 t o  an i n c i d e n t  a Mike's G r o c e r y  S t o r e ,  n o t  r e p e a t i n g  w i a t  you 

" ( 1  recall, i f  any th ing?  
I 

23 
I I MRS. SIDBURY: No, sir. 

L ' I  : 
MR. STROUD: Now, have you heard or read anyth ing  

I 

b 
.,. ' I  

"' ! ' a b o u t  t h e  i n c i d e n t  i n  February,  1971, i n  Wilmington? 
I i 
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r e p e a t i n g  what you r e c a l l ,  i f  anything? 

MRS. SIDBURY: Not t o  any degree. 

MRS. S I D B U R Y :  I have read abou t  it, y e s ,  

MR. STROUD: D o  you r e c a l l  what you have r e a d ,  w i thou t  

MR. STROUD: D o  you recall  having r ead  or heard any- 

t h i n g  about  t h e  burn ing  of Mike's Grocery S t o r e ?  

MRS. SIDBURY: I r ead  about  it, but when you d o n ' t  

know the people  you j u s t  d o n ' t  r e t a i n  those t h i n g s .  I d o n ' t  

98 

remember i n  d e t a i l ,  P 

MR. STROUD: A r e  you aware of  any f a c t o r  t h a t  would 

p reven t  you from 'serving a s  a f a i r  a r d i m p a r t i a l  j u r o r  i n  t h i s  

ca se?  

MRS. S I D B U R Y :  No, sir. 

MR. STROUD: Is t h e r e  any f a c t o r  t h a t  you are a w a r e  I 
of t h a t  would i n f l u e n c e  your d e c i s i o n  i n  t h e  c a s e  i f  you s e r v e  

on t h e  ju ry  o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  evidence and t h e  arguments and t h e  

charge of t h e  Court? I 
MRS.  SIDBuRY: No, sir ,  I 
MR. STROUD: I f  t h e  s t a t e  should  prove t o  you beyond 

a reasonable  doubt t h a t  each  of the defendants  w e r e  involved i n  

and p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  p lanning  and c o n s p i r i n g  t o  burn ~ l i k e b  

Grocery S t o r e ,  i n  P7ilmington, North C a r o l i n a ,  w i t h  a n  i n c e n d i a r  7 
dev ice ,  and t h a t  each of t h e  de fendan t s  w e r e  involved and par-  

t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  p lanning  and c o n s p i r i n g  t o  a s s a u l t  emergency 

pcrsonnc l ,  fj.remen and p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s ,  i n  t h e  a r e a  of  Mike's  I 
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II Grocery Store, in Wilmington, North Carolina, would you find I 99 

I/ MR. STROUD: If the state should prove to you by its 

2 

3 

them guilty as charged? 

MRS. S I D B U R Y :  Yes, sir. 

7 ( (were involved and participated in the burning of Mike's Grocery I 

5 I 
6 

8 /I Store, in iiilmington, North Carolina, with an incendiary or 

evidence and beyond a reasonable doubt that each of the defen- 

dants, with the exception of the defendants Kirby and Shepard, 

9 /I incendiary devices, would you find those defendants guilty as I 

MRS. L I S A N E :  Yes, sir. I 

10 

11 

12 

MR. STROUD: Are you a resident of Pender County, ?Irs. 

charged? - - 

MRS. S I ~ B U R Y :  Yes, sir. 

MR. STROUD: You are Mrs. Lisane? 

l ' ;  II MRS.. L I S A N E :  That's right. 

I1 MRS. LISANE: All my life. 

17 

(- 
l H  

' I1 14R. STROUD: Are you married to anyone? 

MR. STROUD: How long have you been a resident, Mrs. 

Lisane?  

MKS. L I S A N E :  Yes. 

MR. STROUD: What is your husband's occupation, 

MRS. LISANE: Construction. 

MR. STROUD: And are you empbyed outside the home at 
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- > 
MRS. LISANE : .Yc L.. 

MR. STROUD: I n  7-dhat c a p a c i t y ?  I 
MRS. LISANE: -Cli:aning. 

MR. STROUD: D o  you know any of t h e  de fendan t s  or 

t h e i r  a t t o r n e y s ?  

MRS. LISANE: N o .  

MR. STROUD: D i d  you recognize  t h e  names of any of  

t h e  w i tnes ses  who might  appear  f o r  t h e  de fendan t s  i n  t h e s e  

cases? 

MRS. LISANE: N o .  

MR. STROUD: D o  you have any p e r s o n a l  knowledge of 

t h e  i n c i d e n t s  t h a t  occur red  i n  February,  of 1971, i n  Wilmington, 

North Caro l ina?  

MRS. LISANE: N o .  

THE COURT: Speak j u s t  a l i t t l e  loude r ,  p l ea se .  

MR. STROUD: And do you recall  hea r ing  or  r ead ing  or  

having r ece ived  from some o t h e r  sou rce  in format ion  concerning 

1 t h e  n c i d e n t s  that o c c u r r e d  i n  l i i lmington,  Nor th  Carolina, i n  11 1 9 7 1  i n  February? 

MRS. LISANE; No. 

MR. STROUD: D o  you have an  op in ion  a s  t o  t h e ' g u i l t  

'' (1 or innocence  of any of these defendants?  

MRS. LISANE: NO. I 
2 1 MR. STROUD: Do you r e c a l l  read ing  or hea r ing  any th in  

Fj '" 11 about  any of t h e s e  i n d i v i d u a l  defendants?  
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